

Southbourne Parish Council

The Village Hall First Avenue, Southbourne PO10 8HN Telephone (01243) 373667

clerk@southbourne-pc.gov.uk

www.southbourne-pc.gov.uk

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE SOUTHBOURNE PARISH COUNCIL ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE 16th FEBRUARY 2023

PRESENT: Cllrs: R. Taylor (Chairman), Cllr D. James, and non-Councillor co-opted members L. Davies and J. Ullman.

IN ATTENDANCE: M. Carvajal-Neal (Clerk of Allotment Committee).

69. CHAIRMAN'S WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed everyone and opened the meeting at 10:05am. The Chairman thanked everyone for their attendance and advised that we have received the resignation of C. Jones. The Chairman wished to thank Cath for her support and involvement with the committee.

70. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies had been received from C. Jones who has resigned from the committee and from Cllr Riddoch (no reason was given). No other apologies had been received.

71. TO APPROVE AND SIGN THE MINUTES OF THE ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 15^{TH} DECEMBER 2022.

71.1 Members AGREED to APPROVE the Minutes of the Allotment Committee meeting held on 15th December 2022 and they were signed by the Chairman.

72. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

73. ADJOURNMENT FOR PUBLIC OPEN FORUM

There were no items for Open Forum.

74. TO NOTE ANY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Members **NOTED** that the projected income for 2023-24 is £1664 resulting from plot rental. Members additionally **NOTED** that there had been no expenditure from the 2022-23 budget and the balance will be returned to reserves as no expenditure has been identified.

75. TO NOTE THE 2023-24 BUDGET AS SET BY F&P

Members **NOTED** that the Budget for 2023-24 is set at £1000.

76. TO RECEIVE A VERBAL UPDATE FROM THE DEPUTY CLERK REGARDING THE FLANDERS CLOSE ALLOTMENTS INCLUDING;

76.1 COMPLETION DATE

The works is currently being carried out and the completion date is imminent. The Clerk reminded Members that is has been agreed to let the plots as soon as they are available.

76.2 TENANCIES & WAITING LIST

Members **NOTED** that there had been no change to the current tenancies. Members further **NOTED** that there is no waiting list for Flanders Close and the plots have been allocated.

76.3 WATER BUTT INSTALLATION AND COSTS

Members **NOTED** that officers will instruct the contracted caretaker to install the water butts as soon as the shed is installed and **NOTED** that this will likely take place on a Saturday. The cost of £120 has already been **AGREED** and is to be taken from the NHB budget.

76.4 TO NOTE THAT OFFICERS HAVE WRITTEN TO PAUL BARNETT & THE CDC TREE OFFICER REGARDING THE DECISION TO WITHDRAW THE TREE APPLICATION.

This was **NOTED**.

76.5 CONSIDERATION OF THE PURCHASE OF TWO BOLTS AND CODED PADLOCKS FOR THE GATES.

Members **NOTED** the costs and **AGREED** to the purchase of two bolts and three coded padlocks. Members further **AGREED** that if the shed requires a bolt a third can be purchased. Members **AGREED** a total expenditure of £70 for the bolts and padlocks to be taken from the NHB budget or the committee budget if there is no remaining NHB budget.

77. TO NOTE ANY UPDATE REGARDING THE PROVISION OF THE COMMUNAL PLOTS. TO CONSIDER THE ALLOCATION OF THE PLOTS FOLLOWING THE MEETING WITH SOUTHBOURNE SEA SCOUTS ON 14^{TH} FEBRUARY.

Members **NOTED** the meeting between Cllrs James and Taylor, the Deputy Clerk and K. Jarvis, representatives of the Sea Scouts. The Deputy Clerk gave a brief verbal update: Members had asked K. Jarvis what she intends to use the site for and it was clarified that the site would be for growing produce/flowers etc. only. Structures were discussed and it was confirmed that a temporary Gazebo could be installed as this does not contradict the tenancy agreement but no permanent structures would be allowed without the prior written consent of the committee. There was an opportunity to review the tenancy agreement and the terms were agreed by K Jarvis who signed the agreement. It was highlighted that the agreement is between Southbourne Sea Scouts and Southbourne Parish Council, should the representation of the Sea Scouts change or the Sea Scouts no longer operate from Southbourne then the tenancy will be revoked. This is outlined in the agreement.

Member **AGREED** to **RATIFY** the allocation of the plot to the Southbourne Sea Scouts.

78. TO NOTE ANY UPDATES REGARDING SOUTHBOURNE FIELDS. INCLUDING: 78.1 CONSIDERATION OF A COMMUNAL GREENHOUSE.

J. Ullman presented a verbal proposal: Allotment holders at Southbourne Fields would collectively purchase a second-hand greenhouse and install it on a non-permanent base in the space adjacent to plots 13 and 15. They have located a 6x8ft one for a cost of £70. Members would fund the greenhouse by asking plot holders for a donation towards it. The greenhouse would be accessible to all tenants of Southbourne Fields for the use of starting seedlings etc.

The Deputy Clerk presented two options to Members;

- Tenants gift the greenhouse to the Parish Council and, providing the council accept, the greenhouse will be added to the asset register and will be covered by the Council's insurance.
- 2. Tenants form a group, and an agreement is drawn up which details the responsibility and management of the greenhouse including ongoing repairs, maintenance and liability.

After much discussion it was **AGREED** to go with option 1, to gift the Greenhouse the Parish Council. It was further **AGREED** that if the PC accept the donation that the Greenhouse it to be inspected in line with plot inspections. Any repairs, maintenance or other associated costs including removal is to be taken from the committee budget.

It was **AGREED** to make a recommendation to Full Council that the Greenhouse be gifted to the Parish Council under the following terms;

The Greenhouse it to be 6x8ft in size to be installed on a non-permanent base. To be inspected in line with plot inspections. Any repairs, maintenance or other associated costs including removal is to be agreed in advance by the allotment Committee and taken from the Committee budget. The Greenhouse is for use by any Southbourne Field tenants.

78.2 CONSIDERATION OF REPAIR TO THE WATER PIPES. INCLUDING AN UPDATE FROM CLLRS JAMES AND RIDDOCH REGARDING THEIR INSPECTION.

Cllr Riddoch was not present at the meeting however Cllr James gave a verbal update. The pipes appear to have frozen and were damaged, as such the taps had been switched off. It was reported that Cllr Riddoch had previously volunteered to make the repair. Members **AGREED** to a budget of £100.00 for the associated parts. A receipt is to be provided to Officers. The Deputy Clerk will contact Cllr Riddoch to confirm he is willing to carry out the work.

78.3 CONSIDERATION OF THE INSTALLATION OF FRUIT TREES.

Members **AGREED** to the installation of 4 fruit trees; 2 apples, a pear and a plum, and for officers to make the relevant application with CDC. Members **AGREED** to using one of the nurseries recommended by CDC, the Deputy Clerk will determine the most appropriate related to delivery and installation.

A member advised that the trees will need Gator bags for watering and other associated items including piping and installation. Members **AGREED** that J Ullman investigate the purchase of these items and present this back to the committee at a future meeting. Members further **AGREED** to consider at a future meeting a proposal to ask the contracted caretaker to carry out or assist with the planting and to consider the associated costs.

Members further **AGREED** to add to a future agenda to assess the health of the existing trees on site and consider a watering routine for them.

78.4 UPDATE ON THE OWNERSHIP OF THE HEDGEROW AND DITCH.

The Deputy Clerk advised that it had not yet been possible to determine who owns the land adjacent to Southbourne Fields allotments and upon further research it is very difficult to legally define who is responsible for maintenance of ditches and foliage on a boundary. In addition, it is evident that the ditch is being cleared and as such is not likely the cause for flooding at the allotments. Members **AGREED** that at this stage no further action is required on this matter.

78.5 CONSIDERATION OF THE TAKING OF METER READINGS FOR ACCURATE WATER BILLING.

Members **AGREED** that the contracted caretaker carry out quarterly meter readings and provide the reading to officers.

79. TO NOTE THE CURRENT TENANCIES AND WAITING LISTS FOR BOTH SITES.

Members **NOTED** that there are 22 persons on the waiting list. 6 persons had declined Flanders Close.

80. SITE INSPECTIONS, CONSIDERATION OF THE FEBRUARY INSPECTION.

Members **NOTED** the verbal update from the Deputy Clerk and Chair. As the growing season had not yet started a full inspection was not possible, instead the focus was on Health and Safety i.e.. Trip hazards, any required maintenance etc. and as such there were no points to report. Members

AGREED that February is not the best month to carry out an inspection, dates will be reviewed later on this agenda.

81. CONSIDERATION OF THE TENANCY AGREEMENT FOR YEAR 2023-24.

Members considered the revised Tenancy Agreement for 2023-24 and **AGREED** to the amendments:

3.8 to remove "The Tenant shall not keep hens or rabbits or any other livestock in a manner that is prejudicial to human health or animal welfare or a nuisance to surrounding plot holders or residents. in the Tenant must comply with the Council's guidelines for keeping hens and rabbits on allotments with regard to housing, food, water, animal husbandry, health and welfare must be met." And replace with "The Tenant shall not keep hens or rabbits or any other livestock".

82. CONSIDERATION OF THE RENTAL CHARGES FOR YEAR 2023-24.

Members **NOTED** that the rental agreements for 2023-24 were set to be unchanged in line with the Budget set by F&P. Members felt that they would like to review the rental charge but felt that now was not the right time to do so as the budget has just been agreed by Full council. Members **AGREED** that for the year 2024-25 Members would review the charges in September 2023 in time to make a proposal to F&P ahead of them setting the budget. Members further **AGREED** to consider making a recommendation that a maintenance fund be established for the allotments. This will be added to the September agenda for consideration.

83. CONSIDERATION OF COMMITTEE DATES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24.

Members **AGREED** to the following dates:

Thursday 25th May 2023 10am Thursday 21st September 2023 10am 30th November 2023 10am 29th February 2024 10am

These meeting dates have been **AGREED** to fit in line with a number of aspects including; site inspections, tenancy renewals, the growing season and consideration of the budget.

84. CONSIDERATION OF INSPECTION DATES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24.

In line with committee dates as above Members **AGREED** to inspections being carried out in May and September approximately 2 weeks ahead of the committee meetings.

85. TO NOTE THE DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING.

Thursday 25th May 2023 10am